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SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The two-story, Mediterranean Revival'Style,'rough—textured stucco facade structure
located at 2901 West Tamiami Circle was built in 1926 as the Bay Haven Elementary
School. Designed by the architect M. Leo Elliott, the Bay Haven School is an irr:
lar, rectangular-plan building, constructed of masonry and hollow tile, set on a
foundation of concrete footings and a reinforced concrete slab.l The Mediterrane-
Revival Style school building was sited on West Tamiami Circle, between Indian- and
Tennessee Avenues. Existing pine trees located at the site were originally retaiic
The plan of the school was centered around a central courtyard with exterior open
corridors, facing the courtyard, providing access to the rooms located at the fir:t
and second floors. The entrance bay was placed at the center of the east elevatiom.
and a three-bay open loggia marked the ground flodr entrance. The east or entran:c
elevation was divided into five units: the center entrance pavilion was flanked by
‘recessed bank of five windows per floor and the end wings were pedimented, severc
stucco facades marked only by a second story, round-arched opening leading to a ser
circular balcony. The pedimented entrance block was decorated with cast stone mam
factured by Fischer & Jirouch.3 . The entrance is divided into three units, the ¢
fYoor three-bay, open loggia, a bank of five windows flanked by large consoles at.
second floor and the frontispiece topped by a laurel wreath enframed oculus frame!
cornucopias. The original gabled half~gabled and hipped roof projections were
covered with barrel tiling. The wing which intersects the south end of the east
elevation is original to the structure. The wings located at the north and west
elevations are later additions which do not contribute to the site. The original
school building is remarkably well-maintained and intact and is clearly a signific
local landmark.

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located at 2901 West Tamiami Circle, the two-story, Mediterranean Revival Style,

rough-textured stucco facade structure was built as the Bay Haven Elementary Schc«
in 1926. Designed by the Tampa and St. Petersburg architect, M. Leo Elliott, the
Bay Haven School is an irregular, rectangular planned structure, constructed of

masonry and hollow tile, set on a foundation of concrete footings and a 5' reinfo:
concrete slab. Excellent documentation of the original construction materials &:
appearance of the Bay Haven School exists: prints of the original drawings for t!
school, prepared by M. Leo Eilliott in March of 1926 survive,” and contemporary

photographic documentation appeared in the local newspapers of 1926.6 Few altera-
tions have occurred to the Bay Haven School structure since the completion in 192¢

The plan of the school building was centered around a central courtyard, with
exterior open corridors which faced the central corridor and provided access to t
first and second floor classrooms and additional light and ventilation to the cla
room interiors. The entrance bay was placed at the center of the east elevation
-and was approached by a central loggia which led to a central lobby. To the nortrb
‘'of the lobby, a kindergarten and classrooms were placed; to the south, a private
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office, the principal's office and two classrooms followed in succession.’ The
west elevation of the ground floor was characterized by the use of the interior
court corridors. At the ground floor intersecting wings were located one set of
living quarters, bathrooms and a boiler room.8 At the second floor a library and
the teachers' room were located at the central entrance bay, with classrooms located
to the north and south of the central pavilion.9 The roof plan was a series of
gabled, »-gabled and hipped roof projections, set on cast stone brackets. Each

roof was covered in barrel tiling and skylights were provided over the bathrooms,
located at the second story.

The two-story school was located on West Tamiami Circle between Indian and Tennessee
Avenues on a curved site formed by the edge of the Circle. The original landscaping
of the east elevation consisted of a row of pine trees, which were not planted, but
rather existing trees which were retained when the school was built.ll The site is
currently primarily planted with palm trees at the east elevation.
The entrance facade located at the east elevation is divided into five units. The
pedimented entrance pavilion is located at the center and is flanked by a recessed,
five-bay division located to the north and south of the entrance block. The end
blocks are pedimented severe stucco facades, marked only by a blind, round-arched
window which formerly opened on to a semi-circular iron balcony, located at the
second floor of the building. The entrance pavilion is_ornamented with elaborate
cast stone which was manufactured by Fischer & Jirouch.12 The ground floor is
marked by a three-bay open loggia, formed by three round-arched openings carried on
cast stone twisted shaft columns which are set on square bases. The spandrel of
each arch is decorated with a cartouche. Massive pilasters flank the open loggia
and carry an entablature with dentilled and rinceau moldings. The second floor of
the entrance block is divided into five bays of windows which are framed by

- console brackets. The continuous lintel of the five-bay window area is decorated
by an egg and dart molding and the top of the frontispiece is marked by a large
oculus which is protected by a cast stone screen with patera center and laurel
wreath circumference. The oculus is framed by a pair of cast stone cornucopias.

The original windows called for in the Elliott design were triple windows with a
single pane, "simplex" located at the bottom panel and a four-light transom window
located at the top, each window sash specification called for a 1-3/4" thick sash.13

One-and-one-half story shed-roofed projections located behind the entrance facade
at the north and south elevations were provided by round-arched entrances with
elaborate cast stone panels marking, the "Boys" entrance at the south elevation and
the "Girls" entrance at the north elevation. The south elevation is occupied by a
wing which intersects the entrance elevation and is part of the original school
building. The southwest block is marked by a pedimented severe stucco facade with
‘blind balcony and iron balcony identical to the end wings located at the east
elevation. . :

Additions were added to the school, both Bay Haven and Southside in 1952._14 The
flat roofed additions reflect the original plan in the repeat of open corridors at
the courtyard elevations. The west elevation of Bay Haven consists of a later ..
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office, the principal's office and two classrooms followed in succession.’ The
west elevation of the ground floor was characterized by the use of the interior
court corridors. At the ground floor intersecting wings were located one set of
living quarters, bathrooms and a boiler room.8 At the second floor a library and
the teachers' room were located at the central entrance bay, with classrooms located
to the north and south of the central pavilion,.9 The roof plan was a series of
gabled, %-gabled and hipped roof projections, set on cast stone brackets. Each

roof was covered in barrel tiling and skylights were provided over the bathrooms,
located at the second story.

The two-story school was located on West Tamiami Circle between Indian and Tennessee
Avenues on a curved site formed by the edge of the Circle. The original landscaping
of the east elevation consisted of a row of pine trees, which were not planted, but
rather existing trees which were retained when the school was built.ll The site is
currently primarily planted with palm trees at the east elevation.
The entrance facade located at the east elevation is divided into five units. The
pedimented entrance pavilion is located at the center and is flanked by a recessed,
five-bay division located to the north and south of the entrance block. The end
blocks are pedimented severe stucco facades, marked only by a blind, round-arched
window which formerly opened on to a Semi-circular iron balcony, located at the
second floor of the building. The entrance pavilion is_ ornamented with elaborate
cast stone which was manufactured by Fischer & Jirouch.1? The ground floor is
marked by a three-bay open loggia, formed by three round-arched openings carried on
cast stone twisted shaft columns which are set on square bases. The spandrel of
each arch is decorated with a cartouche. Massive pilasters flank the open loggia
and carry an entablature with dentilled and rinceau moldings. The second floor of
the entrance block is divided into five bays of windows which are framed by

- console brackets. The continuous lintel of the five-bay window area is decorated
by an egg and dart molding and the top of the frontispiece is marked by a large
oculus which is protected by a cast stone screen with patera center and laurel
wreath circumference. The oculus is framed by a pair of cast stone cornucopias.

The original windows called for in the Elliott design were triple windows with a
single pane, "simplex" located at the bottom panel and a four-light transom window
located at the top, each window sash specification called for a 1-3/4" thick sash.13

One-and-one-half story shed-roofed projections located behind the entrance facade
at the north and south elevations were provided by round-arched entrances with
elaborate cast stone panels marking,the "Boys" entrance at the south elevation and
the "Girls" entrance at the north elevation. The south elevation is occupied by a
wing which intersects the entrance elevation and is part of the original school
building. The southwest block is marked by a pedimented severe stucco facade with
‘blind balcony and iron balcony identical to the end wings located at the east
elevation. : o -

Additions were added to the school, both Bay Haven and Southside in 1952.14 The
flat roofed additions reflect the original plan in the repeat of open corridors at
the courtyard elevations. The west elevation of Bay Haven consists of a later . §
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SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Located at 2901 West Tamiami Circle, the two-story, Mediterranean Revival Style,
rough-textured stucco facade structure was built as the Bay Haven Elementary School in
1926, according to the designs of Tampa and St. Petersburg architect, M. Leo Elliott.16
Mr. Elliott's "Elementary School" plans, which were issued March 2, 1926, were also
used to build the Southside Elementary School (MRNS #35) at 1901 Webber in the same
year.17 The construction of the Bay Haven School was part of a major county construc-
tion program which provided Sarasota with two new elementary and one new high school
facility.18 Each elementary school was built at a cost of $77,OOO,19 and the land
purchase, construction costs and operating expenses required bg the school expansion
were floated by a bond issue said to have exceeded $1,500,000. 0 fThe erection of
three schools was indicative of the increase of the school-age population and the
location of the schools was indicative of the expansion of the residential developments
to the north, south and east. In 1924 the City commissioned a planning study of the
City by John Nolen, City Planner of Cambridge, Massachusetts.?l 1In his report, which
was published in 1925, Mr. Nolen recommended that four elementary schools be built,
two near the central radius of thr City and two for the outlying residential communi-
ties of the north and south of the City. Only two elementary schools were actually
constructed: '"Bay Haven" was built to provide the Indian Beach community with a
school and the "Southside" school was constructed for the Sarasota Heights popula-
tion.22 1In addition to his masterful eclectic educational facility designs in the
Mediterranean Revivial Style and in the Collegiate Gothic Style for the Sarasota High
School (MRNS #35), the architect of record, M. Leo Elliott also designed the first
skyscraper to be erected in Sarasota, the First National Company multi-story building,
located on Main Street. The building which became the Orange Blossom Hotel was
designed in 1924.23

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The two-story, Mediterranean Revival, textured-stucco facade structure located at
2901 West Tamiami Circle was built as the Bay Haven Elementary School in 1926.
Designed by Tampa and St. Petersburg architect M. Leo Elliott, the Bay Haven School
architectural plans issued in March of 1926 were also used to build the Southside
Elementary School (MRNS #35), located at 1901 Webber built the same year.24 Three new
school buildings were planned by the Sarasota County school Board and designed by

M. Leo Elliott in 1926: two elementary schools, Bay Haven and Southside Schools

and one high school, Sarasota High school (MRNS #34), located at 1001l South Tamiami
Trail. . y o :
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adaition, a one-story wing which blocks the vista of the interior courtyard. The
one-story elevation is pierced by two door openings. The flat-roofed structure does
not contribute to the architectural significance of the site.

Alterations: The original roofs which were formerly surfaced with barrel tiling
are currently covered in red asphalt  roofing material. Although the color used is
a red, the application of barrel tiling at the east elevation would greatly contri-
bute to the appearance of the Bay Haven School. 1In 1976 original window sash was
covered with breakmetal and the glazing was replaced by tempered bronze safety
glass.15 At the courtyard elevation ground floor, the area has been enclosed
blocking the original open vista from the loggia to the courtyard.
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The undertaking of three major school complexes was indicative of the increased
population in the City, and the geographical spread of the school sites was indica-
tive of the expansion of the residential limits of the City to the north, east and
south. Because the school expansion program coincided with the ultimate rise in
real estate prices during the "Boom," particularly high prices were ggid for land.
Both elementary schools were constructed at a cost of $77,000, each. Land
purchase, construction costs and operating expenses were floated by the issuance
of large bonds estimated to have exceeded $1,500,000. It was alleged that as
late as 1935 approximately $1,233,000 of the bonds remained unpaid.2 The rise in
the school-age population was significant: in 1903-04, approximately 124 pupils
were enrolled in the Main Street school and by 1913-1914, 350 students attended
the combination elementary, junior high school and high school.

In 1924 a planning study of the City was commissioned by the City Council.?? The
planning consultant, nationally renowned planner, John Nolen of Cambridge, Massa-
chusetts, recommended that "schools and playgrounds should . . . be within a half-
mile walking distance of children . . ." and "sites . ... should be selected and
acquired at the time of the projected [residential] development of a district.

This may usually be done at a considerable economic saving." 0 Although Mr. Nolen
advised that a "northside" elementary school be located on 9th Street between East
and Fletcher Avenues, and a "Southside" school be placed on Alderman, these loca-
tions were not ultimately selected. Nolen actually recommended that four schools
bé built, two within a %-mile radius of the center of the City and one to serve the
community of Indian Beach in the north; and one for the Sarasota Heights community
in the south quadrant of the City. As built, the "Northside" or Bay Haven School
served the Indian Beach and Bay Haven areas; the "Southside" school served Sarasota
Heights; however, several of the developments, proposed at the time of the school
construction, including Sapphire Shores and.Cherokee Park, which might have benefit-
ted from the north and south locations were adversely affected by the land crash,
and the anticipated demand for the schools was somewhat lessened.

The architect of record, M. Leo Elliott, was a master of the design of educational
facilities. The two Mediterranean Revival elementary school buildings that Mr.
Elliott designed in 1926 are significant for excellence of design and in particular
the high quality of the design of the cast stone ornamentation. The entrance
frontispieces of Bay Haven and Southside schools are remarkably rich with twisted
columns, foliated friezes, consoles and cornucopias. The richness of the cast stone
ornamentation is offset by the rough-textured stucco facades which flank the center
pavilion and in particular the pedimented wings located at the ends of the entrance
elevations with their blind facades, marked only by a narrow round-arched balcony
openings at the second floor. The stark wings are a masterful foil to the ornate
central pavilion. Mr. Elliott's versatility is evident, not only in his use of the
Mediterranean Revival Style in his elementary schools, but in his skillful selection
of the "Collegiate Gothic" in the Sarasota High school design. 1In 1924, Mr. Elliott
~designed the first skyscraper for the City of Sarasota, the First National Company's
multi-story building located on Main Street (which became the Orange Blossom

Hotel). 2 Mr. Elliott designed the building for J. H. Lord, and the major New

York construction firm, G. A. Fuller Company constructed the urbane building.3
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Drawings. 8 Sheets. March 2, 1926. Located at Sarasota County School Board,

Schools.” 10 Sheets. May 14, 1925.

mylars. September 22, 1976. Located at Sarasota County School Board Facilities
Planning.
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